TARKIO R-1 School District

SUPPORT STAFF HANDBOOK 2023-24

Welcome to the Tarkio R-I School District! This handbook is provided to answer general questions about school policy and
procedure. There will be differences between buildings, as dictated by the differing needs of the students. If you have questions not
covered in this handbook, please see the building principal. Policies and procedures referenced here are intended to complement
Board Policy. Many board policies are referenced and included in the back of the handbook for your convenience. You are
responsible for reading, understanding, and following all Board Policies and Regulations. Any potential conflict between this
Handbook and Board Policy will be resolved by relying on Board Policy. For an in-depth look, please refer to the School Board
Policies in the Superintendent’s Office.

Notice of Non-Discrimination

The Tarkio R-I School District is committed to an academic and work environment in which all students and employees are treated with dignity and
respect. The District does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, age, national origin, ethnicity, disability or perceived sexual orientation in
its programs and activities. Discrimination and harassment of students and employees, whether committed by supervisors, employees or students,
and regardless of whether the victim is an employee or student, will not be tolerated.

Inquiries, complaints or grievances from students and their parents and employees regarding discrimination and harassment may be directed to:

Superintendent

312 South 11th Street
Tarkio , MO 64491
660-736-4161

High School Principal
312 South 11th Street
Tarkio , MO 64491
660-736-4118

Elementary School Principal
312 South 11th Street

Tarkio , MO 64491
660-736-4177

Other offices dealing with these complaints:

U.S. Department of Education
Office of Civil Rights

Customer Service Team

Mary E. Switzer Building

330 C Street, SW

Washington , DC 20202

(800) 421-3481

Equal Employment Opportunity Comm.
Robert A. Young Federal Building

1222 Spruce Street

Room 8.100

St. Louis , MO 63103

(314) 539-7800 or (800) 669-4000
WWW.eeoc.gov

U.S. Department of Justice
950 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20530-0001
(202) 353-1555
ASKDOJ@usdoj.g



Board Policy 1300, Prohibition Against Harassment, Discrimination and Retaliation

The District is committed to maintaining a workplace and educational environment that is free from unlawful discrimination, harassment, and retaliation
in admission or access to, or treatment or employment in, its programs, services, activities and facilities. The District is committed to providing equal
opportunity in all areas of education, recruiting, hiring, retention, promotion and contracted service. In accordance with law, the District does not
unlawfully discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, disability, age, genetic information, or any other characteristic
protected by law in its programs and activities. In addition, the District provides equal access to the Boy Scouts of America and other designated
youth groups. Further, no person shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subject to discrimination based on
the above listed characteristics under a school nutrition program for which the District receives federal financial assistance from the U.S. Department
of Agriculture (USDA Food and Nutrition Service).

The following person has been designated as the District's Compliance Officer to handle inquiries or complaints regarding the District's non-
discrimination policies:

Title: Superintendent of Schools
Address: 312 South 11th Street
Telephone Number: 660-736-4161

For information regarding how to report a claim of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation, see Board of Education Regulation 1300. Policy and
Regulation 1300 shall govern all complaints and concerns by parents, patrons, employees, or students of the District related to discrimination,
harassment, or retaliation on the basis of race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, disability, age, genetic information, or any other
characteristic protected by law.

Special Education

All responsible public agencies are required to locate, evaluate, and identify children with disabilities who are under the jurisdiction of the agency,
regardless of the severity of the disability, including children attending private schools, children who live outside the district but are attending a private
school within the district, highly mobile children, such as migrant and homeless children, children who are wards of the state, and children who are
suspected of having a disability and in need of special education even though they are advancing from grade to grade. The school district assures
that it will provide a free, appropriate public education (FAPE) to all eligible children with disabilities between the ages of 3 and 21 under its
jurisdiction. Disabilities include autism, deaf/blindness, emotional disorders, hearing impairment and deafness, mental retardation/intellectual
disability, multiple disabilities, orthopedic impairment, other health impairments, specific learning disabilities, speech or language impairment,
traumatic brain injury, visual impairment/blindness and young child with a developmental delay.

The Tarkio R-I School District assures that it will provide information and referral services necessary to assist the State in the implementation of
early intervention services for infants and toddlers eligible for the Missouri First Steps program.

The Tarkio R-l School District assures that personally identifiable information collected, used, or maintained by the agency for the purposes of
identification, evaluation, placement or provision of FAPE of children with disabilities may be inspected and/or reviewed by their parents/guardians.
Parents/guardians may request amendment to the educational record if the parent/guardian believes the record is inaccurate, misleading, or violates
the privacy or other rights of their child. Parents have the right to file complaints with the U.S. Department of Education or the Missouri Department
of Elementary and Secondary Education concerning alleged failures by the district to meet the requirements of the Family Educational Rights and
Privacy Act (FERPA).

The Tarkio R-I School District has developed a Local Compliance Plan for the implementation of State Regulations for the Individuals with Disabilities
Education Act (IDEA). This plan contains the agency’s policies and procedures regarding storage, disclosure to third parties, retention and
destruction of personally identifiable information and the agency’s assurances that services are provided in compliance with the General Education
Provision Act (GEPA). This plan may be reviewed at the local school district administrative office.

This notice will be provided in native languages as appropriate.



Section 504

The Tarkio R-I School District, as a recipient of federal financial assistance from the United States Department of Education and operates a public
elementary or secondary education program and/or activity, is required to undertake to identify and locate every qualified person residing in the
District who is not receiving a public education; and take appropriate steps to notify disabled persons and their parent or guardians of the District’s
duty.

The Tarkio R-I School District assures it will provide a free appropriate public education (FAPE) to each qualified disabled person in the District's
jurisdiction regardless of the nature or severity of the person’s disability. For purposes of Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the provision
of an appropriate education is the provision of regular or special and related aids and services that (i) are designed to meet individual educational
needs of disabled persons as adequately as the needs of nondisabled persons are met and (i) are based on adherence to procedures that satisfy
the requirements of the Section 504 federal regulations.

The Tarkio R-I School District has developed a 504 Procedures Manual for the implementation of federal regulations for Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act, Subpart D. This Procedures Manual may be reviewed by contacting your student’s school or at the Special Services Office at
1818 West Worley St. 573-214-3463, by appointment. The District 504 Coordinator is Shae Collier.

This notice will be provided in native languages as appropriate.

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

ALL EMPLOYEES, VOLUNTEERS, STUDENT TUTORS, STUDENT TEACHERS, SUBSTITUTES, and EMPLOYEES OF TARKIO SCHOOL
DISTRICT

Students and staff members in the Tarkio School District have the right to expect that information about them will be kept
confidential by ALL employees, volunteers, student tutors, student teachers, substitutes, and employees of outside agencies except
as required by law. Additionally, the U.S. Congress has addressed the privacy-related concerns of educators, parents, and students
by enacting the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (known more commonly as “FERPA”).

¢ Each student with whom you work has the right to expect that nothing that happens to him or her will be repeated to anyone
other than authorized school district employees, as designated by the administrators at each school. Even when discussing a student
with those who are directly involved in a student’s education, such as a teacher, principal, or guidance counselor, you may not share
otherwise confidential information with them unless it is relevant to the student’s educational growth, safety, or well-being.

* You may not share information regarding a student even with others who are genuinely interested in the student’s welfare. You
must refer all such questions to the school district employees so authorized, typically the student’s teacher or building
administrator. The only exception is in the event of an urgent medical emergency, in which confidential information may be
necessary for a student’s medical care.

¢ Parents, friends, or community members may in good faith ask you questions about a particular student. Again, you must refer all
such questions to an authorized school district employee. You may not share information about a student even with members of
your own family or the student’s family.

*Before you speak, always remember that violating a student’s confidentiality isn’t just disrespectful, it is against the law.

*In addition, conversations about, and/or information regarding other staff members must also be kept confidential at all times.
Under no circumstance shall any employee of the Tarkio R-I School District discuss confidential information about other staff
members to other members of the staff or individuals outside the school district.

A violation of any of these will result in immediate action determined by the administration and/or school board.



PROFESSIONALISM AND CHAIN OF COMMAND

The smooth operation of our school district always requires a high level of professionalism. Discussion of school problems with
outside sources does not help resolve problems. Never discuss personal school problems with students.

Chain of command is as follows and works in both directions:
Students/Parents —Teachers/Staff—Building Principal—Superintendent—Board of Education

Communication and problem resolution benefit from following the chain of command. Skipping links in the chain may create friction
and delay the resolution.

All communication or reports to the Board from staff members should be submitted through the Building Principal to the
Superintendent, all communication to the staff from the Board should be handled through the Superintendent to the Building
Principal. This is not to deny communication, but rather to ensure that chain of command is respected and issues are resolved by
the closest links in the chain.

EMPLOYMENT MATTERS

Working Hours-Policy/Regulation 4220

A typical work-day for support staff positions is a 7- or 8-hour day depending on your position. Most support staff positions, but not
all, are required to work when students aren’t in session. Please see your building principal for your specific work hours. A duty free
lunch is provided.

Timesheets
Be prompt and accurate with timesheets. Timesheets are due to your building principal the last day of the month, unless otherwise
specified. Any overtime must be approved by the building principal.

Staff may occasionally leave the building to take care of business that cannot be taken care of outside of school time. Leaving during
the day must be approved by the building principal ahead of time. Staff are required to sign in and out in the office.

Staff Absences-Policies/Regulations 4310 and 4320

Refer to Board Policy for the specific policies on leave for staff. Following are general guidelines.

Planned Absences: Planned absences include personal leave, professional leave, and other planned absences. Do not expect to use
professional development time for planned absences. Such requests are likely to be denied. Forms to be completed are available in
the offices or online.

o  Personal Leave: You must request personal leave from your building principal at least forty-eight hours in advance. All
effort will be made to honor personal requests; however, sometimes it is impossible to grant personal leave time. Do not
make definite plans until your request has been granted.

e Professional Leave: You must request professional leave from your principal well in advance.

e  Other Planned Absences: Make an effort to keep other planned absences to a minimum.

Unplanned Absences: Notify your building principal as soon as you know you will be unable to report to work, either the night
before or between 6:00 and 6:30 AM the day of the absence. Failure to report absences as required may result in disciplinary action.

Family and Medical Leave- FMLA -Policy 4321
The District has adopted detailed procedures to ensure compliance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA). The Board

of Education has designated the Superintendent of Schools to act as FMLA Compliance Officer. The FMLA Compliance Officer will
regularly evaluate the District's FMLA compliance to ensure fair and equitable opportunities for all eligible employees. For more
information regarding this policy, see your district superintendent’s office.




Support Staff Evaluation
Support staff will be evaluated at least once yearly by their immediate supervisor.

Dress
Staff is expected to dress in a manner that reflects professionalism and good taste for the position you hold. Set yourself apart from
students. Rules for student dress apply to staff.

Telephone/Cellphone Use-Policy 4630
Use discretion with personal cell phones. Checking your phone during lunch and breaks is advised.

Mail and Email
Check mail and email on a regular basis throughout the day as time allows. If you receive an email from an administrator, please
check and respond ASAP.

Professional Development-Policy and Regulation 4411
Professional development is occasionally necessary for support staff positions (trainings) and varies depending on the position. Each
staff member should keep track of their professional development dates and times for certification purposes.

Keys/School Equipment
Don’t loan keys to anyone. Don’t make copies of keys. School equipment and keys are only loaned out by an administrator.

Food Service
Adult breakfast is $3.252.50 and lunch is $4.903.50. Please keep money in your account. Accounts must be paid in full when an
invoice is received.

Drug Free Workplace-Policy 4870

Staff should be aware of the district’s drug-free workplace policy. Tobacco use is allowed only in designated areas and should never
occur in the presence of students. There are no designated areas inside instructional buildings; designated areas are outside the
west doors of the elementary and inside the maintenance building north of the high school.

Driver Drug Testing-Policy 4871
The District recognizes that it shares the responsibility to prevent accidents and injuries resulting from the misuse of alcohol or the

use of controlled substances by its employees who operate commercial motor vehicles. The District complies with the provisions of
the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991, which mandates that the District test its drivers who are required to hold
commercial drivers’ licenses under specified conditions. The District will regularly evaluate its policies and procedures to ensure
that it remains in compliance with federal regulations. For specific procedures related to drug testing of employees, please see
Regulation 4871.

Crisis Plans

Staff will need to familiarize themselves with the district crisis management plans and be prepared to implement them for the sake
of practice and use in case of emergency. The Crisis Management Plan is located in the Supt. Office. Signs and/or maps should be
posted in each room regarding the signal for and plan for fire and tornado. Announced and unannounced drills will be held. Always
take a class roster for drills and emergencies.

Computer/Internet Use- Policy 6320

Computers are the property of the school district and may/will be monitored for appropriate use. This includes email. Staff
members and students must sign an acceptable use policy before using the internet. The district servers have content filtering, but
no filter is perfect. If you are able to access, or if you notice students are able to access, sites with inappropriate content, you must
report that immediately to the technology coordinator.

Copyright Law-Policy 6243




District personnel must abide by the provisions of current copyright laws and regulations. Employees who willfully disregard the
District's copyright position are in violation of Board policy; they do so at their own risk and assume all liability.

Visitors
Visitors at school can be distracting to the learning environment. Staff and students should not have visitors, except as otherwise
allowed by Board Policy. Guest speakers in class should be approved by the principal.

Appliances in Classrooms

Appliances such as coffeemakers, microwaves, toaster ovens, mini refrigerators, etc. are not allowed in individual classrooms. Such
appliances are located in common areas such as staff workrooms. If a staff member needs appliances for medical purposes, please
talk to your administrator.

Classroom Maintenance

Custodians are here to clean the building, not to pick up after teachers or students. Keep your room free of clutter so the custodians
can do their job. You may be asked to have students put chairs on top of desks at the end of a certain class to facilitate cleaning. If
you feel your room is being neglected, notify the principal. Repair requests can be obtained from either office and submitted to
building principal for approval.

STUDENT MATTERS

Reporting Child Abuse or Neglect-Policy and Regulation 2710

School employees are mandated reporters. Contact your building principal if you believe a condition exists that qualifies for
mandated reporting.

Sexual/Physical Abuse/neglect: Staff should make themselves aware of the district’s policies on sexual/physical abuse/neglect. The
policies are located in the back of this handbook or in the Superintendent’s Office. Sexual/Physical Abuse or child neglect should
never be taken lightly and must be reported. All staff at the school district are mandatory reporters. If you suspect sexual/physical
abuse or child neglect, it is your responsibility to hotline the information. Then report it to your building principal immediately. You
can make the call with your building principal present, if you prefer.

The toll free number is 1-800-392-3738 -24hours a day and 1-573-751-3448 Outside Missouri.

Sexual Harassment/Bullying: Policy and Form 2655

Staff should make themselves aware of the district’s policies on sexual harassment and bullying. Harassment or bullying reported by
a student should never be taken lightly and must be reported. The employee is to report to the building administrator of any sexual
harassment/bullying by students or staff towards students or staff. Board policy books can be found in Superintendent’s office
regarding sexual harassment/bullying.

Student Suicide Awareness-Policy, Regulation and Form 2785

Policy, Regulation and Form 2785 reflect the District’s commitment to maintaining a safe environment to protect the health, safety
and welfare of students. Regulation 2785 outlines key protocol and procedures for this District in educating employees and students
on the actions and resources necessary to prevent suicide and to promote student well-being.

Mutual Respect
Staff should model appropriate behavior. Fellow staff and students should be treated with the respect. Even when dealing with

negative behavior remain in control and model respectful behavior.

Relationships with Students
Staff need to develop appropriate relationships with students. Students may want to share personal concerns or frustrations with
staff members; however it is not appropriate for staff to share concerns or frustrations with students. Staff members should never




discuss another staff member with a student; -direct them to administration or counselor. Staff should not provide a forum for
students to air grievances about other staff.

Communication with Students by Electronic Media-Policy 4650

Employee personal communication with students, in all forms including oral and nonverbal shall be appropriate and consistent with
Board policy. Personal communication shall be deemed to be inappropriate if such communication is sexual in nature; is sexually
suggestive; suggests romantic activity with student or students; or is otherwise inconsistent with Board policy. Violation of this
provision will result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

Communications between employees and students will be primarily direct, oral or written in nature. Employees may not communicate
with district students via electronic media regardless of whether created or maintained by the employee or students. As restricted in
this policy the phrase “electronic media” includes but is not limited to social networks, texting, and emails. This policy does not
preclude electronic communication between teachers and their siblings and children who may be district students.

The District will provide official electronic media which may be utilized by employees for communication with students for
dissemination of school related information (i.e. homework, practice schedules, supplemental instructional material.)

FINANCIAL MATTERS

Purchasing

All purchases must follow proper procedures!
Making a purchase requires:

1. Filling out a Purchase Order- Purchase Orders are available in each principal’s office. Purchase orders are considered a form
of payment, so they must be completed with all pertinent information. A completed PO includes: Vendor Name, Address,
Phone, Fax, Web address, date PO is completed, if PO needs faxed, quantity, description and amount of purchase, including
shipping and handling.

2. Getting a Purchase Order Signed-Purchase Orders must be approved by your building principal with a signature,
FOLLOWED by a signature from the district superintendent BEFORE purchases are made.

3. Process the Purchase Order- Once the PO has both signatures, it is processed in the superintendent’s office by the
bookkeeper. Do not make purchases without a signed, numbered PO! If it is a credit card purchase, this is when you are
allowed to check out a credit card.

4. Invoice for Payment-Once the purchase is made, it is expected that an invoice will be sent by the vendor matching the PO.
Once POs are matched up with invoices, the actual payment can be made. If an invoice is received and there is no PO to
match, payment cannot be made. If a credit card purchase is made, a receipt must be turned in signed and dated, with an
explanation of purchase, so it can be matched up to a PO.

Credit Card Purchases:

Credit cards are a method of payment and require the same process as a regular purchase order.

Credit card purchases are not allowed without a PO #.

Credit card purchases are not allowed unless a vendor absolutely does not take a PO.

Items charged without prior approval from the principal and superintendent will be paid by the person making the charge, not the
school district.

Reimbursements

Reimbursements are purchases made out of the staff members own funds to be paid back. Receipts are REQUIRED for any type of
reimbursement. Forms for reimbursement are available in the superintendent’s office. Fill out the form and attach receipts for
reimbursement. Reimbursements for mileage (.55) and meals ($25 allowance per day) require a PO for an approved activity. Do not
plan on being reimbursed for something purchased without prior approval. If you take a school van and use personal funds to
purchase gas, you need a receipt and it must be signed and dated with an explanation.

Money Handling-Policy 3610




School activity funds are used to finance a program of student activities which supplement but do not take the place of the
instructional programs provided by the Board of Education. Whether funds are collected from student contributions, club dues,
special activities, or result from admission to events or from other fund-raising activities, all funds will be under the jurisdiction of
the Superintendent and building principals. The funds will be expended to benefit students currently enrolled in school. The
management of the funds will be in accordance with good business practices, including sound budgetary and accounting procedures,
and will be audited in the same manner as District funds. There shall be full disclosure of the sources and expenditures.

eCollection of money for any reason shall be approved by a designated administrator. (Field trips, organizational purchases such as t-
shirts, bake-sales, etc.)

*Two options for money collection.

1. After approval for collection from designated administrator, request a money bag from Mrs. Hogue in the superintendent’s office.
A count sheet will be issued and you will turn the money in once it all has been collected. Receipts are to be issued to students/staff
for payment received. EACH DAY THE MONEY MUST BE GIVEN TO AN ADMINISTRATOR AND/ OR MRS. HOGUE TO BE SECURED IN
THE SAFE. MONEY IS TO NEVER STAY IN YOUR ROOM OVERNIGHT. NON-NEGOTIABLE. You will be contacted the next day if money
bags are not placed in the safe. THIS INCLUDES ORGANIZATIONS SUCH AS YEARBOOK, FCCLA, FFA, CAFETERIA, etc.

2. Inform Mrs. Hogue of the activity you will be collecting money for. It is imperative this happens. Students/staff will pay Mrs.
Hogue or Mrs. Swaby and a receipt will be issued. **On elementary side, a parent/guardian is welcome to come to the
superintendent’s office and pay, otherwise, Mrs. Hogue will make arrangements with a staff member to come across the street to
prevent the students from having to come across the street.

Policy 1110

Religious Expression

The District is committed to provide educational services and to maintain a learning environment, which does not limit or deny
participation in constitutionally protected prayer or other protected religious expression. Consistent with the provisions of the First
Amendment, the District and its employees, who are engaged in official duties, will not sponsor any religious activity or expression.
Conversely, the District and its employees, who are engaged in official duties, will not discourage or preclude religious expression
that is privately initiated, consistent with this policy and regulation. (For Board policy regarding instruction and religious or
controversial issues, refer to Policy 6242 - Religious or Controversial Issues.)

Religious or Controversial Issues
Religious education is the responsibility of the home and church. The espousal by any teacher or staff member of any particular

religious’ denomination or faith is strictly forbidden; however, teachers may teach about religion with information being presented
at an appropriate maturity level for students.

No partisan political views may be espoused by any teacher or staff member; however, teachers may teach about political parties
and politics as related to the governmental systems of the nation or world.



Policy 1430 Visitors to Schools
Principals and teachers shall welcome and encourage visits by parents/guardians, Board members, volunteers and patrons of the

schools. All visitors shall report to the principal's office on entering the building so that the office will be aware of their presence.
When a patron of the school has a need for a conference with a teacher or counselor, an appointment should be made so the staff
member may proceed with his/her assigned duties without undue interruption.

Groups of visitors wishing to visit the school or facilities shall notify the Superintendent as far in advance as possible.
Students dismissed earlier in one school than others are not permitted to be on the grounds of any other school in the District.

All persons who do not obtain permission from the principal's office to visit the school, or visitors who create serious distractions to
the learning environment in the building or on the premises, shall be considered trespassers and subject to arrest and prosecution.

In order to minimize the potential harm to staff and students, persons listed on the sex offenders list may not be present in any school
building, or on district property, in any district vehicle utilized to transport students, or be present at school activities without the
written permission of the Superintendent. If permission is granted for a specific event or events, the Superintendent will notify the
principal, where the sex offender will be present. Sex offenders cannot reside within 1,000 feet of a school or victim unless the
individual is receiving treatment in a treatment facility or nursing home for purposes of getting treatment.

Policy 2655 Bullying
The District is committed to maintaining a learning and working environment free of any form of bullying or intimidation. Bullying is

strictly prohibited on school grounds, or school time, at a school sponsored activity or in a school related context. Bullying is the
intentional action by an individual or group of individuals to inflict intimidation, unwanted aggressive behavior, or harassment that is
repetitive or is substantially likely to be repeated and causes a reasonable student to fear for his or her physical safety or
property; substantially interferes with the educational performance, opportunities, or benefits of any student without exception; or
substantially disrupts the orderly operation of the school. Bullying may consist of physical actions, including gestures, or oral,
cyberbullying, electronic, or written communication, and any threat of retaliation for reporting acts of bullying.

Cyberbullying means bullying as defined above through the transmission of a communication including, but not limited to, a message,
text, sound, or image by means of an electronic device including, but not limited to, a telephone, wireless telephone, or other wireless
communication device, computer, or pager. The District may prohibit and discipline for cyberbullying that originates on any District
campus or at a District activity if the electronic communication was made using the school's technological resources, if there is a
sufficient nexus to the educational environment, or if the electronic communication was made on the District’s campus or at a District
activity using the student's own personal technological resources. Further, students who engage in significant acts of misconduct off
campus which materially and adversely impact the education of District students will be subject to discipline.

Bullying, as defined in this policy, is strictly prohibited. Students are encouraged to report any incident of bullying which they have
witnessed or incurred, by contacting their building principal. District employees are required to report any instance of bullying of which
the employee has witnessed within two (2) school days of the occurrence. Employees shall report the occurrence to the building
principal, who is the person the District designates to receive reports of incidents of bullying. A principal who receives a report of an
incident of bullying shall initiate an investigation into the allegations within two (2) school days of receipt of the report. The principal
may assign other employees to assist in the investigation, or request that the superintendent assign an outside investigator. The
investigation shall be completed within ten school days from the date of the written report of bullying unless good cause exists to
extend the investigation. No employee or student who reports an act of bullying shall be subject to reprisal or retaliation for making
such a report. Any person who engages in reprisal or retaliation against an employee or student who reports an act of bullying shall
be subject to disciplinary action.

Students who are found to have violated this policy will be subject to consequences depending on factors such as: age of student(s),
degree of harm, severity of behavior, number of incidences, etc. Possible consequences to a student for a violation of this policy
include: loss of privileges, classroom detention, conference with teacher, parents contacted, conference with principal, in-school
suspension, out-of-school suspension, expulsion and law enforcement contacted.
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The District shall give annual notice of the policy to students, parents or guardians, and staff. This policy shall be included in all student
handbooks. This policy shall also be posted on the District’s web page (as a Board policy) and a copy shall be placed in the District
Administrative Office.

The District shall provide information and appropriate training to District staff who have significant contact with students regarding
the policy. All staff with significant student contact shall be trained on the requirements of this policy on an annual basis.

The District shall provide education and information to students regarding bullying, including information regarding this policy
prohibiting bullying, the harmful effects of bullying, and other applicable initiatives to address bullying, including student peer-to-
peer initiatives to provide accountability and policy enforcement for those found to have engaged in bullying, reprisal, or retaliation
against any person who reports an act of bullying. The District shall instruct its school counselors, school social workers, licensed
social workers, mental health professionals, and school psychologists to educate students who are victims of bullying on techniques
for students to overcome bullying's negative effects. Such techniques include but are not limited to, cultivating the student's self-
worth and self-esteem; teaching the student to defend himself or herself assertively and effectively; helping the student develop
social skills or encouraging the student to develop an internal locus of control. District administrators will implement programs and
other initiatives to address bullying, to respond to such conduct in a manner that does not stigmatize the victim, and to make
resources or referrals available to victims of bullying.

Policy 2670
Corporal Punishment: Prohibited

No person employed by or volunteering for the School District shall administer or cause to be administered corporal punishment
upon a student attending District schools.

A staff member may, however, use reasonable restraint against a student without advance notice to the principal, if it is essential for
self-defense, the preservation of order, or for the protection of other persons or the property of the School District.

Policy 2710 Reporting Student Abuse
The Board of Education believes that school staff members, school volunteers and school contractors, are in unique positions to assist

children, families, and the community in dealing with the issue of child abuse and neglect. Child abuse is defined as any physical injury,
sexual abuse or emotional abuse inflicted on a child other than by accidental means. Neglect is defined as the failure to provide the
proper or necessary support, education, nutrition or medical, surgical or other care necessary for the child's well-being. Employees,
volunteers and school contractors making reports of allegations of sexual abuse of a student will be provided immediate unrestricted
use of communication technology and will be temporarily released from their work duties to make an immediate report.

If a school employee, volunteer or school contractor has a reasonable belief that a student has been or maybe subjected to abuse or
neglect, such employee, volunteer or school contractor and the Superintendent shall report the information immediately upon
receiving the information to the Children’s Division. Thereafter, the Superintendent will investigate the allegation for the purpose of
making decisions about the accused person’s employment. Depending upon the specific facts, the District may place the alleged
abuser on paid leave of absence; place the employee in a non-student contact position; initiate dismissal proceedings, or continue the
employee in their present position pending outcome of the investigation.

Any school district employee, volunteer or school contractor acting in good faith, who reports alleged sexual misconduct on the part
of a school employee will not be disciplined or discriminated against because of such reporting.

The District will annually provide employee and volunteer training, which will include but not be limited to current information
concerning identification of the signs of sexual abuse in children as well as the identification of the danger signals of potentially abusive
relationships between children and adults. This training will emphasize the importance of mandatory child abuse reporting, including
the obligation to report suspected abuse by other mandated reporters. Employees and volunteers will receive training on the need
for and methods to create an atmosphere of trust so that students believe their school and school employees are available to discuss
matters concerning abusive behavior.
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The District will post in each student restroom and in a clearly visible location in each school office, the toll free child abuse and
neglect hotline number established by the Children’s Division. These signs will be published in both English and Spanish. Such child
abuse and neglect hotline numbers shall be depicted in large print on posters 11 inches by 17 inches and will be placed at eye level
for easy viewing. The hotline number will be shown in bold print. The signs shall also contain instructions to call 911 for
emergencies and contain directions for accessing the Children’s Division’s website for more information on reporting abuse and
neglect.

Missouri Child Abuse and Neglect Statutes (selected sections)

210.110. Definitions.
As used in sections 210.109 to 210.165, and sections 210.180 to 210.183, the following terms mean:

(1) “Abuse”, any physical injury, sexual abuse, or emotional abuse inflicted on a child other than by accidental means by those
responsible for the child’s care, custody, and control, except that discipline including spanking, administered in a reasonable
manner, shall not be construed to be abuse;

(2) “Central registry”, a registry of persons where the division has found probable cause to believe or a court has substantiated
through court adjudication that the individual has committed child abuse or neglect or the person has pled guilty or has been found
guilty of a crime pursuant to section 565.020, 565.021, 565.023, 565.024 or 565.050, RSMo, if the victim is a child less than eighteen
years of age, section 566.030 or 566.060, RSMo, if the victim is a child less than eighteen years of age, or other crime pursuant to
chapter 566, RSMo, if the victim is a child less than eighteen years of age and the perpetrator is twenty-one years of age or older,
section 567.050, RSMo, if the victim is a child less than eighteen years of age, section 568.020, 568.030, 568.045, 568.050, 568.060,
568.080, or 568.090, RSMo, section 573.025 or 573.035, RSMo, or an attempt to commit any such crimes;

(3) “Child”, any person, regardless of physical or mental condition, under eighteen years of age;
(4) “Director”, the director of the Missouri Division of Family Services;
(5) “Division”, the Missouri Division of Family Services;

(6) “Family assessment and services”, an approach to be developed by the Division of Family Services which will provide for a prompt
assessment of a child who has been reported to the division as a victim of abuse or neglect by a person responsible for that child’s
care, custody or control of that child’s family, including risk of abuse and neglect, and if necessary, the provision of community-
based services to reduce the risk and support the family;

(7) “Investigation”, the collection of physical and verbal evidence to determine if a child has been abused or neglected;

(8) “Jail or detention center personnel”, employees and volunteers working in any premises or institution where incarceration,
evaluation, care, treatment or rehabilitation is provided to persons who are being held under custody of the law;

(9) “Neglect”, failure to provide, by those responsible for the care, custody, and control of the child, the proper or necessary support,
education as required by law, nutrition or medical, surgical or any other care necessary for the child’s well-being;

(10) “Probable cause”, available facts when viewed in the light of surrounding circumstances which would cause a reasonable person
to believe a child was abused or neglected;

(11) “Report”, the communication of an allegation of child abuse or neglect to the division pursuant to section 210.115;

(12) “Those responsible for the care, custody, and control of the child”, those included but not limited to the parents or guardian of a
child, other members of the child’s household, or those exercising supervision over a child for any part of a twenty-four-hour day.
Those responsible for the care, custody and control shall also include any adult who, based on *relationship to the parents of the
child, members of the child’s household or the family, has access to the child.
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*Word “their” appears here in original rolls.

6. Any person or individual required to report may also report the suspicion of abuse or neglect to any law enforcement agency or
juvenile office. Such report shall not, however, take the place of reporting or causing a report to be made to the division.

210.130 Oral reports, when and where made—contents of reports.
1. Oral reports of abuse or neglect shall be made to the division by telephone or otherwise.

2. Such reports shall include the following information: The names and addresses of the child and his parents or other persons
responsible for his care, if known; the child’s age, sex, and race; the nature and extent of the child’s injuries, abuse, or neglect,
including any evidence of previous injuries, abuse, or neglect to the child or his siblings; the name, age and address of the person
responsible for the injuries, abuse or neglect, if known; family composition, the source of the report; the name and address of the
person making the report, his occupation, and where he can be reached; the actions taken by the reporting source, including the
taking of color photographs or the making of radiological examinations pursuant to sections 210.110 to 210.165, or both such taking
of color photographs or making of radiological examinations, removal or keeping of the child, notifying the coroner or medical
examiner, and other information that the person making the report believes may be helpful in the furtherance of the purposes of
sections 210.110 to 210.165.

3. Evidence of sexual abuse or sexual molestation of any child under eighteen years of age shall be turned over to the division within
twenty-four hours by those mandated to report.

210.165 Penalty for violation.
1. Any person violating any provision of sections 210.110 to 210.165 is guilty of a class A misdemeanor.
2. Any person who intentionally files a false report of child abuse or neglect shall be guilty of a class A misdemeanor.

3. Every person who has been previously convicted of making a false report to the division of family services and who is
subsequently convicted of making a false report under subsection 2 of this section is guilty of a class D felony and shall be punished
as provided by law.

4. Evidence of prior convictions of false reporting shall be heard by the court, out of the hearing of the jury, prior to the submission
of the case to the jury, and the court shall determine the existence of the prior convictions.

210.167 Report to school district on violations of compulsory school attendance law—referral by school district to prosecutor,
when:

If an investigation conducted by the Division of Family Services pursuant to section 210.145 reveals that the only basis for action
involves a question of an alleged violation of section 167.031, RSMo, then the local office of the division shall send the report to the
school district in which the child resides. The school district shall immediately refer all private, parochial, parish or home school
matters to the prosecuting attorney of the county wherein the child legally resides. The school district may refer public school
violations of section 167.031, RSMo, to the prosecuting attorney.

Policy 3170
Purchases By and/or Solicitation of School Staff

Conflict of Interest
The School District will not purchase supplies or materials from a staff member of the School District, nor from a member of the

household of the staff member, except in emergency situations as determined by the Superintendent of Schools. Neither will the
District purchase supplies, materials or services from a member of the Board of Education or from a member of his/her household,
or from a firm in which he/she holds a major interest.
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Endorsements
Employees of the District will not endorse products or services in such a manner that will identify the employee as an employee of
the School District.

Procurement Activities
In any purchasing activities all employees shall refrain from soliciting, discourage the offer of, and decline gifts if offered by any

vendor wishing to do business with, or who is doing business with the School District. Instead of making an offer of gifts, the vendor
should be encouraged to discount the price of the goods to the school.

Solicitation/Distribution
The advertising of sale or distribution of any goods or service on school property, for any school activity, shall have prior approval

from the building principal or Superintendent. This includes but is not limited to: school personnel, students, parents/guardians,
relatives, general public and commercial businesses.

Solicitations of School Staff
Agents, solicitors, and salespersons will be denied the privilege of seeing the school staff during the school day except with

permission of the administration.

Policy 3440
Travel and Reimbursement

It is the policy of the Board to pay reasonable travel expenses for those who travel on District business and whose trip has been

approved in advance by the Superintendent/designee. These expenses include registration, transportation, meals, lodging, tolls, and
parking charges. Expenses are reimbursed only when properly accounted for by an individual and approved by the
Superintendent/designee.

Federal Award Programs

Travel costs, include transportation, lodging, meals, subsistence and related expenses incurred by employees who are in travel status
on official business of the District. When District employees are traveling on Federal program business, automobile travel will be
reimbursed at the then existing IRS mileage rate. The reasonable costs of lodging, meals and related costs will be fully reimbursed.
However, such costs will be allowable only to the extent such costs do not exceed charges normally allowable by the District in its
regular operations. With prior approval, commercial air travel is a covered expense, provided the air travel utilizes the least expensive,
unrestricted accommodation class.

In addition, the District’s Policy and Regulation 3440 are applicable except where District policies conflict with specific Federal Award
Program guidelines set out herein. In such cases, Federal Award Program guidelines control.

Policy 3610

Management
School activity funds are used to finance a program of student activities which supplement but do not take the place of the

instructional programs provided by the Board of Education. Whether funds are collected from student contributions, club dues,
special activities, or result from admissions to events or from other fund-raising activities, all funds will be under the jurisdiction of
the Superintendent and building principals. The funds will be expended to benefit students currently enrolled in school. The
management of the funds will be in accordance with good business practices, including sound budgetary and accounting procedures,
and will be audited in the same manner as District funds. There shall be full disclosure of the sources and expenditures of all funds.

Policy 4110
Equal Opportunity Employment

The Board of Education of the School District is an equal opportunity employer. The Board is committed to providing equal opportunity

for all individuals in all areas of recruitment, selection, placement, training, assignment, transfer, compensation, benefits, discipline,
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retention, and promotion. The Board commits itself to the policy that there shall be no unlawful discrimination or harassment against
any person because of race, color, religion, age, sex, national origin, ethnicity, disability, sex orientation or perceived sex orientation.
All decisions with regard to employment shall be in compliance with applicable state and federal laws.

The Board is required by the Immigration Reform and Control Act to employ only American citizens and aliens who are authorized to
work in the United States. The purpose of this law is to preserve jobs for those individuals who are legally entitled to them.

Policy 4120
Employment Procedures

The Board of Education, upon recommendation of the Superintendent, votes on the employment of all staff members. In approving

applicants, the Board will be guided by the desire to obtain individuals committed to providing the highest quality education for the
District's students. For Title | staff qualifications and hiring, refer to Policy and Regulation 1621 —Title I.

No person will be employed by the Board until the District obtains a clear criminal records check and a clear check of the Child
Abuse/Neglect Registry maintained by the Missouri Department of Social Services. Additionally, and prior to offering employment to
any teacher who had previously been employed by a Missouri school district or charter school, the Superintendent/designee shall
obtain from the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education the identity of the school district or charter school that had
previously employed the applicant. The District will contact the former employer to determine if such applicant had been
terminated or resigned in lieu of termination; or against whom allegations of sexual misconduct had been substantiated by the
Children’s Division.

All persons employed by outside vendors/contractors who will have contact with students will be required to successfully undergo a
criminal records and a clear check of the Child Abuse/Neglect Registry prior to contact with students. Such background checks will be
performed at the vendors/contractors’ expense and will, upon request, be shared with the District. All finalists for an employment
position will be required to sign a release of liability authorizing prior employers, including school districts, to furnish any
information about the applicant and the applicant’s work performance, including but not limited to discipline records and
performance evaluations. The administration may also conduct random background checks after employment. Failure to check
references and prior employment for new hires prior to their start date may result in disciplinary action up to and including
suspension without pay.

As part of the criminal records check, any person employed after January 1, 2005, shall submit two sets of fingerprints to be used by
the Missouri Highway Patrol and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. The fingerprints shall be collected pursuant to standards
determined by the Missouri Highway Patrol. All District employees who are authorized to access the Missouri Automated Criminal
History Site (MACHS) will only use such criminal history information for purposes of verifying qualifications for employment. The
District will not create copies of the criminal record for employment record purposes and will not disseminate the record, except as
permitted by law.

The District will designate a full-time employee, who will be fully trained in the Missouri Highway Patrol’s automated criminal history
site (MACHS), to serve as the District Local Agency Security Officer (LASO). The District’s LASO Security Officer will be responsible for
implementation and oversight of the District’s Use of MACHS for all applicants. Any employee who attempts to access MACHS
without authorization, improperly disseminates an applicant’s criminal history record or facilitates unauthorized access to MACHS,
will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination.

All vacancies should be posted for a minimum of ten (10) school days before the Superintendent may recommend a qualified
applicant to the Board for employment. In an emergency situation the Superintendent may temporarily employ an applicant prior
to the expiration of the posting. The temporary applicant may be considered along with other applicants for the position after the
ten days. However, in order to hire a Board member's spouse, the position must have been advertised. (Refer to Policy 0342 —
Nepotism, Conflict of Interest and Financial Disclosure.)

The Superintendent or his designee is the person who shall respond to requests from potential employers for information regarding
a former District employee. The information the District should provide is title, position, length of employment, whether the
employee was terminated or resigned, and whether the District would re-hire the employee.
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Additionally, when requests for information from any public school regarding a former employee against whom allegations of sexual
misconduct involving a student have resulted in a determination by the Board of an actual violation of sexual misconduct pursuant
to Board Policy; a resignation in lieu of termination; or allegations of sexual misconduct that have been substantiated by Children’s
Division, the Superintendent or his designee shall disclose to the requesting school the allegations of sexual misconduct and the
findings of a Children’s Division investigation.

Any school district employee who is permitted to respond to requests for information, acting in good faith, who reports authorized
information, as provided in this policy or, who, in good faith, reports alleged sexual misconduct on the part of a District employee,
will not be disciplined or discriminated against because of such report.

This foregoing policy is intended to comply with the Amy Hestir Student Protection Act, Senate Bill 54, including section 162.068
RSMo. The District shall provide notice of this policy to all current employees and to all potential employers who contact the District
regarding the possible employment of a District employee.

Policy 4221
Support Staff Duties, Schedules and Working Hours

The school year and work calendars will be set annually by the Board of Education. Work hours may be changed by the

administration as needed.

Regular attendance is essential in order to maintain a high quality of instruction. Support staff employees, with reasonable notice,
will be subject to disciplinary action when their absenteeism is deemed to be excessive.

Overtime/Compensatory Time
Employees who work overtime must receive prior authorization from their immediate supervisors.

Policy 4310
General Attendance

Regular attendance is essential in providing District students with a high quality of instruction. Eligible certificated staff and support

employees will be given sick and personal leave days each school year. See Regulation 4320 for specific details.

When employees are absent more than 10 days in any semester or more than 20 days per school year, their absence is considered
excessive. The Superintendent/designee will review each incident of excessive absence and may require the employee to provide
medical documentation or may consider disciplinary actions up to and including termination.

Policy 4320 Personnel Leave
The Board of Education shall adopt regulations for the following types of leave for District employees:

Sick Leave

Personal Leave

Bereavement Leave

Leave for Jury Duty

Military Leave

Leave of Absence

Family and Medical Care Leave (See Policy and Regulation 4321.)

. Domestic/Sexual Violence Leave

Specific provisions of the various types of District leave are described in Regulation 4320.
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Policy 4321 Family and Medical Leave
The Board of Education recognizes that leaves of absence are occasionally necessary due to family or medical reasons or in certain

circumstances associated with service members’ service in the Armed Forces. The District has adopted detailed procedures to ensure
compliance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (FMLA). As provided by District regulations, eligible employees are entitled
to use up to twelve (12) workweeks of unpaid leave for family and medical reasons (up to 26 workweeks for covered events related to
those serving in the Armed Forces). The Board of Education has designated a District administrator to act as FMLA Compliance Officer.
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As part of its compliance program, the District will notify each employee of the name, address and telephone number of the District's
FMLA Compliance Officer and will provide a statement of commitment to adhere to FMLA regulations. The FMLA Compliance Officer
will regularly evaluate the District's FMLA compliance to ensure fair and equitable opportunities for all eligible employees.

Compliance Officer: Superintendent of Schools located in the Superintendent’s Office.

Policy 4510
Benefits

The Board of Education provides fringe benefits to full-time staff members. The extent and nature of fringe benefits provided may
vary by employee group and work schedule. Insurance coverage for staff members includes:

Liability Insurance

Workers' Compensation Insurance
Unemployment Compensation Insurance
Medicare Coverage

Medical Insurance
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Policy 4530
Workers' Compensation Benefits

Employees who suffer an injury caused by an accident or occupational disease arising out of and in the course of employment

("work-related injury") will receive benefits paid by the District according to the Workers' Compensation Law of the State of Missouri
("the Law"). Employees driving District owned or subsidized vehicles are not covered by this policy when driving such District owned
vehicles to or from the home or to or from the work station. Absence from duty resulting from a work-related injury will be
compensated according to the Law. Employees who receive workers' compensation benefits for lost time from work due to a work-
related injury are not eligible for additional sick leave or vacation benefits under this policy, except with respect to those employees
whose average weekly wage as defined by the Law ("average weekly wage") exceeds the actual wage necessary to obtain the
maximum total disability rate as defined by the Law ("maximum wage").

In addition to the benefits for temporary total disability allowed under the Law, an employee whose average weekly wage at the
time of the work-related injury exceeds the maximum wage at the time of the work-related injury will receive in wages the
difference between the employee's average weekly wage and the maximum wage during the time period such employee is entitled
to temporary total disability benefits under the Law. This additional benefit provided herein does not affect an employee's wage
rate for purposes of permanent disability benefits.

Policy 4540
Group Insurance Benefits

The Board of Education directs that medical group insurance coverage for staff members will be provided. The

Superintendent/designee will solicit proposals and make recommendations to the Board of Education for approval of the insurance
provider.

Employees shall be given information regarding COBRA benefits at the times of employment and separation.
The contract for medical insurance will be submitted for competitive bidding at least once every three (3) years.

For purposes of this policy competitive bidding means public notice of the request for medical insurance bids and the provision of
information about district participants, claims history, and the details of the District’s existing health insurance policy and proposed
modifications.

Development or Physical Disabilities
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The District’s medical group insurance for staff members, after January 1, 2020, will provide coverage for the diagnosis and treatment
of autism spectrum disorders and for the diagnosis and treatment of developmental or physical disabilities to the extent that such
diagnosis and treatment is not already covered by the District’s health plan.

Policy 4620
Support Staff Performance Evaluation

The development of a competent support staff is a major objective of the performance evaluation. All supervisors and/or principals

will complete an annual written evaluation on all support staff under their supervision. The following areas will be evaluated:

Job Knowledge

Quality of work

Quantity of work

Dependability

Cooperation

Attendance

Punctuality

Other areas as appropriate for the specific job
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This evaluation will be used to improve job proficiency and to determine eligibility for reemployment.
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Policy 4630
Staff Conduct

The Board of Education requires all staff members to serve as positive role models for District students. District schools exist to provide
quality, cognitive, and affective education for District students in a safe and appropriate setting. In achieving these objectives, staff
are required to meet certain performance criteria including, but not limited to:

Review and comply with Board policies, regulations, and procedures as well as related building rules and practices.
Properly prepare for student instruction.

Fully utilize instructional time for learning activities.

Maintain students under active supervision at all times.

Assess student performance in a regular and accurate manner.

Modify instructional goals to meet the needs of each student.

Comply with administrative directives.

Communicate with students in a professional and respectful manner.

Communicate with colleagues, parents and District citizens in a professional manner.

. Properly operate and maintain district property.

. Utilize district technology solely for school district business.

. Maintain required records and submit requested reports in a timely manner.

. Comply with all safety guidelines and directives.

. Refrain from the use of profane and obscene language.

. Dress in a professional manner.

. Attend to all duties in a punctual manner.

. Maintain student confidentiality pursuant to state and federal law.

. Follow and implement student Individual Education Programs (IEP) under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA)
or plans under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act.

. Maintain and account for District funds in the staff member’s possession and control.

. Maintain professional relationships with students. With the exception of students who are immediate family with the staff
member, this requirement also includes avoiding situations that could lead to allegations of inappropriate relationships with
students, including, but not limited to:

a. Being presentin any setting where students are provided or are consuming alcohol or illegal drugs.

b. Inviting students to be alone with a staff member at a staff member’s residence, on staff member’s private property,
or in a staff member’s motor vehicle without the prior consent of the building principal.

c. Communicating with students, electronically or in person, about the student’s sexual activity or concerning the staff
member’s sexual or romantic conduct.
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d. Being present on District premises alone with a student in a room where the door is closed, the door is locked, or
the lights are off, unless required temporarily due to emergency circumstances. Counselors and administrators are
exempted from this prohibition in performance of professional duties.

e. Covering the interior window(s) of instructional space and offices with any material that blocks or obscures outside
vision into the space, unless required temporarily due to emergency circumstances.

f.  Communicating with students about sexual topics outside approved District curriculum, unless done as part of a

District investigation into sexual abuse or harassment.

Utilizing students to attend to personal errands for the staff member.

Allowing students to drive a staff member’s vehicle.

i.  Provision to a student of any pictorial, three-dimensional or visual depiction of sexual acts of any sort as well as human
genitals. However, works of art, when taken as a whole, have serious significance or materials used in science class are
not considered to be violations of this subparagraph. Questions regarding the applicability of the subparagraph must be
directed to the teacher’s building administrator.

September 2015, Copyright © 2015 Missouri Consultants for Education, Inc.

Policy 4650
Communication with Students by Electronic Media

Employee personal communication with students, in all forms including oral and nonverbal shall be appropriate and consistent with
Board policy. Personal communication shall be deemed to be inappropriate if such communication is sexual in nature; is sexually
suggestive; suggests romantic activity with student or students; or is otherwise inconsistent with Board policy. Violation of this
provision will result in disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

Communications between employees and students will be primarily direct, oral or written in nature. Employees may not communicate
with district students via electronic media regardless of whether created or maintained by the employee or students. As restricted in
this policy the phrase “electronic media” includes but is not limited to social networks, texting, and emails. This policy does not
preclude electronic communication between teachers and their siblings and children who may be district students.

The District will provide official electronic media which may be utilized by employees for communication with students for
dissemination of school related information (i.e. homework, practice schedules, supplemental instructional material.)

Policy 4840
Conflict of Interest

District employees are prohibited from engaging in any activity that would conflict, or raise a reasonable question of conflict, with

their responsibilities in the District. If an employee is in doubt concerning whether certain acts violate this policy, the employee must
seek an opinion from the superintendent and regulations of this policy.

Policy 4850
Staff Dispute Resolution

The Board of Education recognizes that in any workplace misunderstandings and disputes arise. If left unresolved, these disputes could

undermine staff morale and can interfere with the educational mission of the District. The Board has adopted a formal process for
dispute resolution that encourages specified employees to resolve concerns quickly and at the most immediate administrative level.
This policy does not limit the right of any employee to file a complaint under Policy and Regulation 1300 based on harassment or
discrimination because of an individual’s race, color, national origin, ancestry, religion, sex, disability, age, genetic information, or any
characteristic provided by law. For more information concerning dispute resolution see Regulation 4850 in the District’s board policies
and regulations.

**%*January 2018, Copyright © 2018 Missouri Consultants for Education, LLC

Policy 4870
Drug Free Workplace

The unlawful possession, use or distribution of illicit drugs and alcohol on school premises or as a part of school activities is strictly
prohibited.
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Employees under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or controlled substances while on duty are a serious risk to themselves, to students
and to other employees. Employees who display physical manifestations of drug or alcohol use while on duty, may be subject to drug
testing. Any employee who violates this policy will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination and referral for
prosecution. Employees may also be required to satisfactorily participate in rehabilitation programs.

As a condition of employment, all employees must abide by the terms of this policy. Employees who are convicted of a drug offense
which occurred on school premises or while on duty must notify the Superintendent of their conviction. Notification must be made
by the employee to the Superintendent within five (5) days of the conviction. Within ten (10) days, the Superintendent will provide
notice of such violation to the Impact Aid Program, United States Department of Education, or other appropriate government agency.

The District will institute a drug-free awareness program to inform employees of:

The dangers of drug and alcohol abuse in the workplace.

This policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace.

Available counseling and rehabilitation.

The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace.
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On the basis of medical certification, employees with the illness of chemical dependency shall qualify for the employee benefits and
group insurance coverages that are provided for under group health and medical insurance policies. The confidential nature of the
medical records of employees with chemical dependency shall be preserved in the same manner as for all other medical records.

The District's responsibility for chemical dependency is limited to its effects on the employee's job performance. If the employee
violates this policy, refuses to accept diagnosis and treatment, or fails to respond to treatment, and performance is adversely affected,
the employee will be subject to employment action in proportion to the performance problem. Implementation of this policy will not
require or result in any special regulations, privileges or exemptions from the standard administrative practice applicable to job
performance requirements.

Upon the request of the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education or an agency of the United States, the District shall certify
that it has adopted and implemented the drug prevention program described in this policy, in the form required by such agency. The
District shall conduct a biennial review of this policy to determine its effectiveness, implement necessary changes, and to ensure that
the disciplinary sanctions are consistently enforced.

It shall be a violation of this policy for any employee to possess, use, manufacture, distribute, or be under the influence of medical
marijuana in any manner inconsistent with Missouri state law and applicable regulations. Additionally, employees may not be under
the influence of marijuana while they are (i) acting in the scope of their employment, whether on District property or off, or (ii) present
at any school- or District-sponsored or sanctioned event such as athletic events or conferences. Employees may seek reasonable
accommodations related to medical marijuana under the District’s policies and procedures addressing the Americans with Disabilities
Act.

Transportation Employees

District employees who are subject to the Transportation Employee Testing Act may not use medical marijuana on work days and may
not use marijuana while on District transportation or under the influence of marjiuana. Transportation employees who test positive
for any controlled substance including marijuana are subject to dismissal. Transportation employees who cannot, for medical reasons,
comply with this policy may request a transfer to a non-safety sensitive position.

The information in this policy will be distributed to all present and future employees.

Policy 4871 Driver Drug Testing
The District recognizes that it shares the responsibility to prevent accidents and injuries resulting from the misuse of alcohol or the

use of controlled substances by its employees who operate commercial motor vehicles. The District complies with the provisions of
the Omnibus Transportation Employee Testing Act of 1991, which mandates that the District test its drivers who are required to hold
commercial drivers licenses under specified conditions. The District fully complies with the provisions of the “Commercial Driver’s
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License Drug and Alcohol Clearinghouse.” The District will regularly evaluate its policies and procedures to ensure that it remains in
compliance with federal regulations.

Policy 4872 Alcohol and lllicit Drugs
The District prohibits all employees from the possession, distribution, or presence under the influence of alcohol and non-prescribed

controlled substances while on school premises. This prohibition is exemplified by Policy 4870 Drug-Free Workplace and
Policy/Regulation 4871 Driver Drug Testing. Violation of this policy as well as Policies 4870 and 4871 will result in disciplinary action
up to and including termination. In addition, such violation may result in substantially reduced or forfeiture of workers
compensation benefits where the use of substances prohibited by this policy was in conjunction with or related to a work place
injury. Post Accident Drug / Alcohol Testing

Employees under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or controlled substances while on duty are a serious risk to themselves, to
students, to other employees, and to District property. Where an employee holding a safety sensitive position is involved in an
accident producing injury, the District will require the employee to submit to post injury alcohol/drug testing.

Post accident testing will be utilized after any accident

®  involving the loss of life;

®  resulting from a violation of Board Policy or Regulations, or municipal, state, or federal law;
= which results in an injury to a person who receives medical treatment;

" resulting in disabling damage to any motor vehicle or piece of District equipment;

= resulting from a violation of a safety regulation or safety directive.

Refusal to submit to post injury testing will result in disciplinary action up to, and including termination, and may result in forfeiture
of Workers Compensation benefits for injuries related to the request for testing.

Employees holding a non-safety sensitive position will be subject to post accident drug testing where a District administrator has
sufficient cause to suspect the employee’s use of alcohol or non-prescribed controlled substance producing accident, in conjunction
with or related to a work place testing. Such post accident testing will be utilized in the instance of the occurrence of any of the five
instances set forth in this policy.

Safety Sensitive Positions:

The following list of positions are hereby classified as “safety sensitive” due to the serious risk of harm that can result from
performing said job duties while impaired by drugs or alcohol; therefore, employees occupying such positions are subject to drug
testing in accordance with published Board Policies and Regulations:

e Food service employees.

e Transportation employees.

e  Custodial employees.

¢ Maintenance employees (HVAC, Electrical, Plumbing).

e Anydistrict employee whose job duties involve the performance of supervising children, including, but not limited to
teachers, teachers’ aides, lunchroom/playground monitors, etc.

Regulation 6320

Internet Usage
Access to electronic research requires students and employees to maintain consistently high levels of personal responsibility. The

existing rules found in the District's Behavioral Expectations policy (Board Policy/Regulation 2610) as well as employee handbooks
clearly apply to students and employees conducting electronic research or communication.

One fundamental need for acceptable student and employee use of District electronic resources is respect for, and protection of,
password/account code security, as well as restricted databases files, and information banks. Personal passwords/account codes may
be created to protect students and employees utilizing electronic resources to conduct research or complete work.
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These passwords/account codes shall not be shared with others; nor shall students or employees use another party's password except
in the authorized maintenance and monitoring of the network. The maintenance of strict control of passwords/account codes protects
employees and students from wrongful accusation of misuse of electronic resources or violation of District policy, state or federal law.
Students or employees who misuse electronic resources or who violate laws will be disciplined at a level appropriate to the seriousness
of the misuse.

Acceptable Use
The use of the District technology and electronic resources is a privilege, which may be revoked at any time. Staff and students are

only allowed to conduct electronic network-based activities which are classroom or workplace related. Behaviors which shall result in
revocation of access shall include, but will not be limited to: damage to or theft of system hardware or software; alteration of system
hardware or software; placement of unlawful information, computer viruses or harmful programs on, or through the computer system;
entry into restricted information on systems or network files in violation of password/account code restrictions; violation of other
users' rights to privacy; unauthorized disclosure, use or dissemination of personal information regarding minors; using another
person's name/password/account to send or receive messages on the network; sending or receiving personal messages on the
network; and use of the network for personal gain, commercial purposes, or to engage in political activity.

Students and employees may not claim personal copyright privileges over files, data or materials developed in the scope of their
employment, nor may students or employees use copyrighted materials without the permission of the copyright holder. The Internet
allows access to a wide variety of media. Even though it is possible to download most of these materials, students and staff shall not
create or maintain archival copies of these materials unless the source indicates that the materials are in the public domain.

Access to electronic mail (E-mail) is a privilege and designed to assist students and employees in the acquisition of knowledge and in
efficiently communicating with others. The District E-mail system is designed solely for educational and work related purposes. E-
mail files are subject to review by District and school personnel. Chain letters, "chat rooms" or Multiple User Dimensions (MUDs) are
not allowed, with the exception of those bulletin boards or "chat" groups that are created by teachers for specific instructional
purposes or employees for specific work related communication.

Students or employees who engage in "hacking" are subject to loss of privileges and District discipline, as well as the enforcement of
any District policy, state and/or federal laws that may have been violated. Hacking may be described as the unauthorized review,
duplication, dissemination, removal, damage, or alteration of files, passwords, computer systems, or programs, or other property of
the District, a business, or any other governmental agency obtained through unauthorized means.

To the maximum extent permitted by law, students and employees are not permitted to obtain, download, view or otherwise gain
access to "inappropriate matter" which includes materials that may be deemed inappropriate to minors, unlawful, abusive, obscene,
pornographic, descriptive of destructive devices, or otherwise objectionable under current District policy or legal definitions. Similarly,
the use of any District computer to access sites which allow the user to conceal their objective of accessing inappropriate material is
not permitted.

The District and school administration reserve the right to remove files, limit or deny access, and refer staff or students violating the
Board policy to appropriate authorities or for other disciplinary action.

Internet Access

In compliance with the Children’s Internet Protection Act (“CIPA”), 47 U.S.C. § 254, the District uses technological devices designed
to filter and block the use of any District computer with Internet access to retrieve or transmit any visual depictions that are obscene,
child pornography, or “harmful to minors” as defined by CIPA and material which is otherwise inappropriate for District students.

Due to the dynamic nature of the Internet, sometimes Internet websites and web material that do not fall into these categories are
blocked by the filter. In the event that a District student or employee feels that a website or web content has been improperly blocked
by the District’s filter and this website or web content is appropriate for access by District students, the process described below should
be followed:
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1. Follow the process prompted by the District’s filtering software (or to remain anonymous, log in under log in name:
123anonymous) and submit an electronic request for access to a website, or:

2. Submit a request, whether anonymous or otherwise, to the District’s Superintendent/the Superintendent’s designee.

3. Requests for access shall be granted or denied within three days. If a request was submitted anonymously, persons should either

attempt to access the website requested after three days or log back in at 123anonymous to see the status of the request.

4. Appeal of the decision to grant or deny access to a website may be made in writing to the Board of Education. Persons who wish
to remain anonymous may mail an anonymous request for review to the Board of Education at the School District’s Central
Office, stating the website that they would like to access and providing any additional detail the person wishes to disclose.

5. In case of an appeal, the Board of Education will review the contested material and make a determination.

6. Material subject to the complaint will not be unblocked pending this review process.

In the event that a District student or employee feels that a website or web content that is available to District students through District
Internet access is obscene, child pornography, or “harmful to minors” as defined by CIPA or material which is otherwise inappropriate
for District students, the process described set forth in Regulation 6241 should be followed.

Adult users of a District computer with Internet access may request that the “technology protection measures” be temporarily disabled
by the chief building administrator of the building in which the computer is located for lawful purposes not otherwise inconsistent
with this Policy.

Privileges

The usegof District technology and electronic resources is a privilege, not a right, and inappropriate use will result in the cancellation
of those privileges. All staff members and students who receive a password/account code will participate in an orientation or training
course regarding proper behavior and use of the network. The password/account code may be suspended or closed upon the finding
of user misuse of the technology system or its resources.

Network Etiquette and Privacy
Students and employees are expected to abide by the generally accepted rules of electronic network etiquette. These include, but are

not limited to, the following:

1. System users are expected to be polite. They may not send abusive, insulting, harassing, or threatening messages to others.

2. System users are expected to use appropriate language; language that uses vulgarities or obscenities, libels others, or uses
other inappropriate references is prohibited.

3. System users may not reveal their personal addresses, their telephone numbers or the addresses or telephone numbers of
students, employees, or other individuals during E-mail transmissions.

4, System users may not use the District's electronic network in such a manner that would damage, disrupt, or prohibit the use
of the network by other users.

5. System users should assume that all communications and information is public when transmitted via the network and may
be viewed by other users. The system administrators may access and read E-mail on a random basis.

6. Use of the District's electronic network for unlawful purposes will not be tolerated and is prohibited.

Services

While the District is providing access to electronic resources, it makes no warranties, whether expressed or implied, for these services.
The District may not be held responsible for any damages including loss of data as a result of delays, non-delivery or service
interruptions caused by the information system or the user's errors or omissions. The use or distribution of any information that is
obtained through the information system is at the user's own risk. The District specifically denies any responsibility for the accuracy
of information obtained through Internet services.

Security

The Board recognizes that security on the District's electronic network is an extremely high priority. Security poses challenges for
collective and individual users. Any intrusion into secure areas by those not permitted such privileges creates a risk for all users of the
information system.
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The account codes/passwords provided to each user are intended for the exclusive use of that person. Any problems, which arise
from the user sharing his/her account code/password, are the responsibility of the account holder. Any misuse may result in the
suspension or revocation of account privileges. The use of an account by someone other than the registered holder will be grounds
for loss of access privileges to the information system.

Users are required to report immediately any abnormality in the system as soon as they observe it. Abnormalities should be reported
to the classroom teacher or system administrator.

The District shall use filtering, blocking or other technology to protect students and staff from accessing internet sites that contain
visual depictions that are obscene, child pornography or harmful to minors. The District shall comply with the applicable provisions of
the Children's Internet Protection Act (CIPA), and the Neighborhood Internet Protection Act (NCIPA).

Vandalism of the Electronic Network or Technology System
Vandalism is defined as any malicious attempt to alter, harm, or destroy equipment or data of another user, the District information

service, or the other networks that are connected to the Internet. This includes, but is not limited to the uploading or the creation of
computer viruses, the alteration of data, or the theft of restricted information. Any vandalism of the District electronic network or
technology system will result in the immediate loss of computer service, disciplinary action and, if appropriate, referral to law
enforcement officials.

Consequences
The consequences for violating the District's Acceptable Use Policy include, but are not limited to, one or more of the following:

Suspension of District Network privileges;

Revocation of Network privileges;

Suspension of Internet access;

Revocation of Internet access;

Suspension of computer access;

Revocation of computer access;

School suspension;

Expulsion; or

Employee disciplinary action up to and including dismissal.

T.@.‘”.\‘P‘S"PP’!\’!—‘

Safe Schools Act of 1996 (selected excerpts and summaries)

Several areas have been addressed by the Safe Schools Act of 1996. Amendments were added in 1997 and 2000. Items discussed
below pertain to classroom and staff issues, in particular.

1. School Discipline Policies

¢ School districts must establish a written discipline policy, including a district statement of district position on corporal
punishment.

e Provide copy to parents and students (school handbook, district calendar, etc.).

¢ All employees will receive instruction in the contents and use.

2. Reporting requirements

Administrators are required to report acts of violence. These include, but are not limited to, felony acts such as murder, kidnapping,
assault, forcible rape and sodomy, burglary, robbery, distribution of drugs, arson, manslaughter, felonious restraint, property
damage, and possession of a weapon. The administrator must report such infractions to the superintendent and a law enforcement
agency if the act, if committed by an adult, would be an assault or possession of a controlled substance or weapon.

A teacher or school employee must immediately report an assault to the principal. The employee must also report the finding of a
weapon or controlled substance. (The good faith reporter will not be civilly liable for providing such information to the police.) To
not report (willful neglect or refusal to report) is a crime.
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3. Definition of a weapon

These items include, but are not limited to, firearms, blackjacks, explosives, firearm silencer, gas gun, knife, knuckles, machine gun,
projectile weapon, rifle, shotgun, spring gun and/or switchblade knife.

4. Penalties for possession of a weapon

The discipline policy shall provide for a suspension for a period of not less than one year, or expulsion, for a student who is
determined to have brought a weapon to school in violation of district policy, except that: the superintendent may modify each
suspension on a case-by-case basis; and this shall not prevent the district from providing educational services in an alternative
setting to a student suspended under the provisions of this section.

5. Removal of students

Immediate removal may be taken by principal, superintendent, or school board that the student poses a threat of harm to others as
evidenced by poor conduct, past actions, criminal court records, or juvenile records.

6. Miscellaneous

Assault while on school property is defined and classified as a Class D felony. Drug-free school zones are within 2000 feet of public
school property. Distribution of drugs near schools is a Class A felony. Crime of making a false bomb threat has been changed to a
Class D felony. Crime of Making a Terroristic Threat, 574.150RSMo0.2000: A person commits the crime of making a Terroristic Threat
if he communicates a threat to commit a felony, makes a knowingly false report concerning the commission of any felony, or
knowingly makes a false report concerning the occurrence of any catastrophe to frighten or disturb 10 or more people (Class C
felony), to cause the evacuation or closure of any building, inhabitable structure, place of assembly or transportation facility (Class C
felony) or with reckless disregard of the risk of causing the evacuation or closure of any building, inhabitable structure, place of
assembly or transportation facility (Class D felony).
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BULLYING INCIDENT REPORT FORM

If you have been the target of bullying or have witnessed the bullying of a District student, complete this form and
submit to the building principal. Complaints against building principals should be submitted to the Superintendent.
Complaints against the Superintendent should be submitted to the Board of Education. Reports of bullying will be
investigated and disciplinary action will be taken as warranted.

Date Filed: Time:

Name*:

Phone Number(s):

Indicate the appropriate response to the following with a check mark(s):
e Youarea: Student Parent Employee Volunteer

Date(s) of alleged bullying:

Name of student(s) subjected to bullying:

Person(s) alleged to have committed the bullying or harassment:

Summarize the incident(s) or occurrence(s) of bullying as accurately as possible. Attach additional sheets or use back side
of the form, if necessary.

Names of Witnesses:

Have you reported this to anyone else: Yes No. If so, who?

*Signature of Complainant

*Students have the right to complete this form anonymously. However, it will be easier for the District to investigate
this matter if as much information as possible is provided. Submission of a good faith complaint or report of
bullying or harassment will not affect the complainant or reporter’s future employment, grades, learning, or working
environment. A complainant that falsely accuses someone will be subject to disciplinary action.

This Section is for use of District Administration

Date Received by Principal:

Investigative Action taken:

Result of Investigation/Action taken:




26

Signature of Principal:
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TECHNOLOGY USAGE
(Employee Technology Agreement)
| have read the Tarkio R-I Technology Usage policy and procedure and agree to abide by their provisions. | understand that violation

of these provisions may result in disciplinary action taken against me including, but not limited to, suspension or revocation of my
access to district technology and termination of my employment with the district.

| understand that my use of the district's technology resources is not private and that the school district may monitor my electronic
communications and all other use of district technology resources. | consent to district interception of or access to all of my electronic
communications using district technology resources as well as downloaded material and all data | store on the district’s technology
resources, including deleted files, pursuant to state and federal law, even if the district’s technology resources are accessed remotely.

I understand | am responsible for any unauthorized costs arising from my use of the district’s technology resources. | understand that
I am responsible for any damages to district technology due to my negligent or intentional misuse of the district’s technology
resources. | understand that this form will be effective for the duration of my employment with the district unless changed or revoked
by the district or me.

Signature of Employee: Date:

Note: The reader is encouraged to review policies and/or procedures for related information in this administrative area.

Tarkio R-1 School District
Acknowledgement of the Tarkio School District’s Faculty Handbook for 2022-20232023-24 School Year

I acknowledge | have received and reviewed a copy of the Employee Handbook, and that | have been made aware there is also an
electronic version of the handbook available on the district’s website. | agree that if there is any policy or provision of the Handbook
that | do not understand, | will seek clarification from the building principal or direct supervisor. | acknowledge that this Handbook is
not a contract, either express or implied. | understand the District is an “at-will” employer, and as such, employment is not for a
fixed term or definite period and may be terminated at the will of either party, with or without cause, at any time, and without prior
notice, unless otherwise agreed to by the Board and me in a writing signed by both the Board President and me. | understand that
the policies, procedures and benefits described in this Employee Handbook are periodically reviewed by the administration and the
Board, and may be amended, modified, or deleted unilaterally by the Board at any time. | further acknowledge that the provisions in
this Handbook are for informational purposes only and to the extent they differ from Board of Education policy, rules, regulations, or
plan documents, the Board of Education policy, rules, regulations or plan documents are controlling.

| have read through the Tarkio School District’s Faculty Handbook and understand my roles and responsibilities of being a Tarkio R-I
School District faculty member. As well, | have received copies of the technology user agreement and the drug-free workforce
policy.

Print Name:

Signature:

Date:
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